
 

 
  

CITY OF BEAUFORT 
HISTORIC REVIEW BOARD 
POST OFFICE DRAWER 1167 

BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901 
(843) 525-7011 

FAX: (843) 986-5606 
 
 

MINUTES 
The City of Beaufort 

HISTORIC DISTRICT REVIEW BOARD 
Full Board Wednesday, March 10, 2010, 2:00 P.M. 

Beaufort City Hall – 302 Carteret Street 
Beaufort, South Carolina   

  
  

Members Present 
John Gadson, Sr. Chairman 
Lisa Estes 
Greg Huddy 
Joel Newman 
Jay Weidner 
 
I. Call to Order: 
 

Mr. Gadson, Sr., Chairman called the meeting to order at 2:00 P.M.  He introduced the 
Board members, Lisa Estes, Greg Huddy, Joel Newman and Jay Weidner, and City of 
Beaufort staff, Donna Alley, Preservation Planner, and Julie Bachety, Recorder. 

 
II. Review Minutes: 
 

A. Minutes for the Meeting of February 10, 2010 
 
Motion:  Ms. Estes made a motion, seconded by Mr. Newman, to approve the minutes as 
presented.  The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 

 
 
 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
March 10, 2010 
Page 2 
 
III. Public Hearing 
 

A. 702 Bladen Street – Demolition of main structure, Final Review. 
 

Ms. Alley presented the applicant for demolition of the structure located at 702  
Bladen Street.  Ms. Alley said currently the site is located on the Beaufort County 
Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1900, “Does not contribute to listed district”.  
The structure is currently vacant and abandoned.  The property was posted and a 
public hearing notice was published in the Beaufort Gazette on February 16, 2010. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment. 
 
Beekman Webb said this is the only commercial historic building on Bladen 
Street and he doesn’t want to see it torn down because it seems it could be 
restored. 
 
Mr. Gadson closed the public hearing. 
 

B. 1012 Congress Street – Demolition of main structure, Final Review. 
 
Ms. Alley presented her staff report for demolition of the structure located at 1012 
Congress Street.  Ms. Alley said currently the site is located on the Beaufort County 
Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1900, “Contribute to listed district” and the 
structure is currently vacant and abandoned.  The property was posted and a public 
hearing notice was published in the Beaufort Gazette. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.   
 
Beekman Webb said this house has been vacant for over 25 years and is one of 
the best houses in the Northwest Quadrant and if any of the houses in this area are 
to be saved, it should be this one.  Mr. Gadson asked Mr. Webb what is there that 
can be saved.  Mr. Webb said it needs repair, but the whole house can be saved.  
 
Jimmy Chaplin spoke on behalf the applicant, Albertha Shumpert, who is his 
Aunt.  He said his Aunt is the original and sole owner of the property and the 
house has been in his family for many years.  Mr. Chaplin said there’s nothing on 
the back of the house and you can see through the house.  He said the fireplace is 
the only thing that his holding up the house.  He said he’s in construction and will 
be the one to demolish the house, since his Aunt can’t afford to restore it. 

 
 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
March 10, 2010 
Page 3 

 
His Aunt first talked to the Historic Beaufort Foundation for help, but there were 
no funds.  He feels the house is beyond repair and it’s a liability now because the 
house is badly leaning and may fall onto the neighbor’s house. 
 
Mr. Gadson closed the public hearing. 
 

IV. Review of Full Board Projects 
 
A. 702 Bladen Street – Demolition of main structure, Final Review. 

Applicant:  Steve Tully of Community Development Corp. (HR10-07) 
 

Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said currently the 
site is located on the Beaufort County Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1900, 
“Does not contribute to listed district” and the structure is currently vacant and 
abandoned. She said demolition of the structure would allow for continuation of the 
Phase One Streetscape along the Southern portion of Bladen Street, in order to 
facilitate wider sidewalks, tree planting and on-street parking.  Ms. Alley referred to 
the Milner Supplement 18-19.  The property was posted and a public hearing notice 
was published in the Beaufort Gazette on February 16, 2010.  Ms. Alley passed out 
an 
e-mail note from Lamar Taylor who is with the City Public Works Department who 
recommends demolition. 
 
Steve Tully, the applicant, said he has a development plan that was done 2-3 years 
ago and won’t pursue it right now, but there is an opportunity now to clean up the 
street.  Mr. Tully said “restorable” and “repairable” are two different things.  He’s 
not sure if it could be moved, but he would let someone have it to move.  He went 
to the Police Department regarding safety, and he said it has been secured, but has 
no key for it.  He also spoke with the school crossing guard and asked if the 
intersection was dangerous and she said yes it is.   
 
Evan Thompson, Executive Director of Historic Beaufort, introduced Peter Palmer 
who will be the new chairman of Historic Beaufort Foundation.  Mr. Palmer passed 
around an historic picture of the house.  He said there is attractiveness to it and it’s 
special.  He said by it not being listed as a “contributing” structure is an oversight.  
Mr. Tully referred to the “Schein” building.  Mr. Thompson said this is not the 
Schein building.  Mr. Thompson said Historic Beaufort Foundation went back into 
the deeds and it was purchased by David Schein and the 1912 Sanborn Map shows 
it as a “store”.  He said the Schein’s sold it eventually but kept it rented out,  
 
 



 
 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
March 10, 2010 
Page 4 

 
commercially.  By 1960, it was covered up by asbestos and brick veneer was put 
on. Mr. Thompson said he is undertaking a survey of the Northwest Quadrant 
requested by Archives & History.  He said there is some potential to restore the 
building.  Mr. Tully feels his options are only demolition or keep it dry.  Mr. Tully 
said if he is made to keep it, the issues the Board will face are the public safety, 
moving it and or looking at it “Tyveked”.  Mr. Gadson asked about the Northwest 
Quadrant survey.  Mr. Thompson said Archives & History is requesting one for 
mitigation of an historic house that Habitat will be demolishing for the grant cycle. 
 
Mr. Gadson commented and said we do have a dilemma because we have lost a lot 
of fabric historic contributing structures already.  He said ever time we lose a 
building, we get real nervous about what is happening to the district.  He said also 
city council has put into position some codes, rules and regulations to the Board to 
manage and mitigate the historic nature of the Beaufort district. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for the Board’s comments.  Mr. Newman referred to the 
streetscape ideas that were discussed before he joined the Board.  He feels the 
character of it being “out of line” is a big plus.  The other board members agreed 
with Mr. Newman.  Mr. Weidner referred to the 300th celebration of Beaufort.  He 
feels this area needs to be preserved.  Mr. Newman said it has enough character to 
become something good over time.  Mr. Gadson said the next step should be to 
spend more time on what to do to make the building fit.  Libby Anderson clarified 
the streetscape.  She said the streetscape can proceed just fine within the front right-
of-way.  She said if it’s not demolished then we need a specific plan.  Ms. Estes 
mentioned grants.  Mr. Thompson referred to the Stabilization Program grant.  Mr. 
Tully said he would be willing to participate in any program. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 

 
Motion:  Mr. Newman made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes, to deny the request for 
Demolition based upon the structure’s historic significance to the district.  The motion 
carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 
B. 1012 Congress Street – Demolition of main structure, Final Review. 

Applicant:  Jimmy Chaplin for Albertha Shumpert, Owner (HR10-08) 
 
Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  Ms. Alley said currently the 
site is located on the Beaufort County Historic Sites Survey, 1997, circa 1900,  
 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
March 10, 2010 
Page 5 

 
“Contributes to listed district” and the structure is currently vacant and abandoned.   
She said a design concept for a replacement structure has not been submitted.  She  
also said the structure serves as an important place-holder for an historic streetscape 
that is quickly disappearing due to pressures to demolish neglected and abandoned  
historic structures.  The property was posted and a public hearing notice was 
published in the Beaufort Gazette on February 16, 2010.  Staff recommends denial 
of demolition.  
 
Mr. Chaplin said his Aunt asked him to find someone licensed in the City of 
Beaufort to look at the house.  He said she’s tried getting Federal Grants but had no 
luck.  Mr. Chaplin’s partner, Brian, said the structure has serious termite damage 
but it could be stabilized if needed.  Mr. Palmer said several people have been 
working on this property and if it can be saved it will be a treasure.  Mr. Thompson 
said the whole western half of the house is sound; there are original doors; original 
mantels; the room that is in bad shape is salvageable as well as the roof.  He showed 
a hand-drawn layout of the 1000 block of Congress Street.  He talked about all the 
houses in this area have been demolished and now there are only 3 houses.  Mr. 
Gadson asked Mr. Chaplin if he has received any offers from anyone or is there a 
plan to sell the lot.  Mr. Chaplin said no, he also said his Aunt does not want to sell 
the property.  Mr. Gadson said the structure cannot stay the way it is now because it 
is a hazard and if nothing is done, the City will intervene and put a lien on the 
property. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for the Board’s comments.  Mr. Weidner said repairing the house 
is important and will serve everyone involved. Mr. Gadson said the family cannot 
get out of doing something with the house.  Ms. Estes sympathizes with the 
applicant and his Aunt.  Ms. Estes said it will cost either way to tear it down or 
keep it.  Mr. Huddy  said we are also charged with looking at the historic part of the 
structure.  Mr.  Huddy said even though we sympathize we cannot let this waive our 
decision.  Mr. Gadson referred the applicant to Beekman Webb for help.  Mr. 
Newman feels the lot is more valuable with the house on it versus taking it down. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 

 
Motion:  Mr. Huddy made a motion, seconded by Mr. Weidner, to deny the demolition  
based on the fact that it is contributing and has historical significance.  The motion 
carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 
*Mr. Gadson took a five minute break. 

 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
March 10, 2010 
Page 6 

 
C. 1203 Prince Street – Demolition or Repair:  Status Report. 
 

Ms. Alley said this was put back on the agenda for an update.  She said the 
applicant was asked to attend the meeting but we haven’t heard back from her.  
She said the structure has been secured.  She suggested we keep monitoring it.  
Mr. Gadson said one of the daughters had lived in Beaufort and said they are 
talking among each other about what they want to do. 
 
Mr. Gadson asked for public comment.  There was no public comment.  Mr. 
Gadson closed the public comment. 
 

D. 1010 Church Street – New Construction, Final Review. 
Applicant:  Low Country Habitat for Humanity (HR10-10) 

 
Ms. Alley presented her staff report for the project.  She said the applicant is 
proposing to demolish the existing structure and new construction of a 
replacement structure.  On December 9, 2009, the applicant received final 
approval for demolition of the deteriorated historic structure.  The property was 
posted and a Public Hearing Notice was published in the Beaufort Gazette.  Ms. 
Alley said a final materials list; including manufacturer’s specifications for all 
doors, windows and roofing shall be required for final review.  Staff recommends 
final approval, as submitted. 
 
The applicant, Jim Enloe, said this house is involved in a Federal Grant and the 
grant regulations say we have to use foreclosed properties or properties that need 
to be torn down and not an empty lot.  He said he changed the roof line to go the 
other way; the stairs are within the 6’ setback and there is a door off the kitchen 
because of the parking situation; and the air conditioning unit will be in the back 
corner of the house away from the street.  He said this house layout works best for 
the family and this is one of his better plans.  He said the backyard will be fenced 
in with a gate.  The Board suggested doing a suggested an awning over the side 
entry and possibly rearranging the interior layout to accommodate a back door.  
The applicant said this can be done easily. 
 

Motion:  Mr. Newman made a motion, seconded by Ms. Estes, to grant approval to the 
plan layout as submitted with the following suggestions: 
 

• Consider an awning/covering be constructed over the side entry; and 
• Consider rearrangement of the interior layout to accommodate the addition of a 

rear door. 
 



 
Historic Review Board Minutes 
March 10, 2010 
Page 7 

 
The motion carried with a vote of five to zero. 
 

V. Old Business 
 
 No new business. 
 
VI. New Business 
 
 No new business. 
  
VII. Discussion 
 
VIII. Adjournment 
 
 Motion:  made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 
The Meeting adjourned at 3:55 P.M. 

 
 

Submitted by Julie A. Bachety, Recorder 
 


